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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF PUERTO RIco 
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Plaintiff, Civil Action No. 08-1264 (SEC) 

v. 
JURy DEMAND. 

'.' 
POLICIA DE PuERTO .RIco, 


Defendant. 


. CONSENT DECREE 

This action was brought by the Unite4 States of~erica against th~ Policia de Puerto 

Rico ("Puerto Rico Police Department" or "PRPD") to enforce the provisions ofTitle VlI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964; as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e? et seq. In, its Complaint, the United. 

States alleges that the Puerto Rico Police Department has discriminated against Jeanette 

Caraballo LOpez on the basis ofher sex in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2ea) and has retaliated 
J 

~ 	 1 

-'" -.-_.._..___.._..-:..._against.hedn-:v.iqlation,..oL421J.8.C._§..2.o.0De,a.(a),..andhas .retaliated ..against ManuelB.oni1la __ .. _.__.. _ ..... _.._.. _.._.~ 
/ 

Carrasquillo in violation of42 U.S.C. § 2000e~3(a). 

,The parties, desiring to settle appropriately this ac.tion, agree to the jurisdiction ofthls 

Court over. them and the subj ect matter ofthis action, and hereby waive the entry of:fin~ of 

fact and conclusions oflaw. The parties, desiring to avoid protracted and unnecessary litigatipn, 

also accept this Consent Decree ("Decree") as fmal on the issues resolved. Tills Decree, being 
/ 

entered with the consent o.f the :parties, shall not constitute an admission, . adjudication or finding . 
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9n the merits of this ~.ction, and the PRPD denies that any unlawful discrimination or retaliation 

has occurred. 

In resolution of this action, the parties hereby AGREE and the Court expressly 

APPROVES, ENTERS AND ORDERS the following: 

I. PARTmS AND DEF1NITIONS 

1. The parties to this Decree are the United States, by the United States Department 

of Justice ("United States"), and the Puerto Rico Police Department. 

2; The Puerto Rico Police Department, its current, former and future agents, 

empJoyees, officials, designees and successors in interests are referred to hereinafter as the 

''PRPD.'' 

. 3. Jeanette Caraballo Lopez is referred to hereinafter as '~Caraba110." 

4. Manuel Bonilla Carrasquillo is referred to hereinafter as ''B~nilla.''' 
. . 

5. The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission is referred to hereinafter as the 

"EEOC." 

6. Title vn ofthe Civil Rig4ts Act of1964, ~ amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq., 

is referred to hereinafter as ''Title VII." 
.__._--_._----_..._.-_..._.._----_...-----_._.__..._--- -----;--_.__.._._..__._.._-_._...__._--_._---_..._. --- -- -"-"­

7. ''Retaliation'' is any act that would be prohibited under Title VII's prohibitions 

against retaliation such as taking an adverse employment action agafnst an employee because the 

employee has opposed any praqtice he or she reasonably believes violates Title vn, or has made . 

a formal or informal complaint Cir charge, or testified, assisted, or participated in any manner in a 

formal or informal. investigation, proceeding or hearing relating to a practice alleged to violate 

Title VII. 
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n. 	 SPECIFIC RELIEF 

8. Without admitting the allegations ofthe United States, and in settlement of the 

United States' claims for individual relief, as well as in settleme:q.t of the claims of Caraballo and 

Bonilla if each accepts the relief provided to her or him by this Decree, the PRPD agrees to do 

the following: 

A. 	 Jeanette Caraballo LOpez 

The PRPD shall offer to Caraballo: 

(1) a total monetary award (inclusive of attorney's fees) of$lOO,OOO; 

(2) to expunge from Caraballo's personnel files, as w~l1 as from anY'other 

files maintained by the PRPD, any docume:r~ts issued or dated between January 1, 2001 and June 

1, 2005 (the period oftime during which Captain Gr~gorio Caceres and Lieutenant Osvatdo . .[
i 

Garcia supervised Caraballo in the Division de Investigaci6n de Vehiculos Hti..'i:ados (,'Division
" 	 , 

ofJnvestigation ofSt~len Vehicles" or "DIVH") for the Fajardo Area ofthe PRPD) that contain I 
negative referenc,es about Caraballo's work perfo:rmance; and 

(3) to reinstate Caraballo into ~e position she previously held of"Agent-

Investigator'? in the Secciqn,de Asuntos C~.nfidenCiales y Crimen Organizado ("Confidential I 
__._._h____..~..___"_____.___________________.______=_____.--"-~-.----.-----.----------.-.---.---.1 

,
Matters ap.d Or¥anized'Crime Section" or '~S~CCO',) oftheDIVH for the Fajardo Area ofthe 

" 

PRPD, at the salary, level of seniority, and with all the benefits and emoluments of that position 
", .' 

to which she would pe entitled had she remained in that position without interruption. The 

PRPD shall reinstate Caraballo into the "Agent-Investigator" position specified above, pr:- with 

Caraballo's consent- into an equivalent "Agent-Investigator" position in another division under 

the supervision ofthe Superintjn~ente Auxiliar de Investigaciones Cr:iminales ("Auxiliary 

3 
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Superintendent for Criminal Investigations" or ."SAIC"). no later than sixty (60) days after its 

receipt ofher executed Individual Relief and Release of Claims fonn, in which Caraballo 

indicates that she accepts this relief. 

B. 	 Manuel Bonilla Carrasquillo 


The PRPD shall offer to Bonilla: 
 i 
i 

(1) a tot8.1 monetary award (inclusive of attorney's fees) of$25,OOO; 

(2) to expunge from Bonilla's personnel files, as well as from any other 	 . I 

! 
files maintained by the PRPD, any documents ~s~ped or dated between January.i, 2001 and June ! 

1, 2005 (the period oftime during which Captain Gregorio Caceres and Lieutenant Osvaldo 

Garcia supervised Bonilla in the DIVH for the Fajardo Area of the PRPD) that contain negative 

references about Bonilla's work performance; 
I 	 . 

(3) to not provide negative ~mployment references ·for Bonilla to any 

future prospective employer that inquires about his past employment in the PRPD, and not refer 

in any way to Bonilla's filing of a complaint or charge ofretaliation or to this lawsuit when 

/ 
cOmInunicating with prospective employers seeking a reference for Bonilla. If a reference is 

. requested by a prospective employer, the PRPD will only confinn the length ofBonilla's . 
._-_.__._._------.-.._-_._---------.-_._-----_ ..•...__._--:------------------_._----­

employment, his past salary history, arid the fact ili.at he received ratings ofsatisfactory or above 

throughout his PRPD career; and 

(4) to grant Bonilla the benefits and emoluments to which he would have 

been entitled had he remained in his previous position of"Agent-Investigator" in the SACCO of 

the Division of Investigation of Stolen Vehicles for the Fajardo Area of the PRPD without 

interruption until his 'retirement. The PRPD will review Bonilla's retirement benefits package no 

4 
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later than s:ixty (60) days after its receipt ofBonill~'s e~ecuted Individual Relief and Release of 

Claims fo~, and report to Bonilla anq. the United States the results ofits review.. 

9. Within fifteen (15) days after the date of entry of this Decree, the PRPD shall 

notify Caraballo and Bonilla ofits terms by mailing to each of them, in care.ofherlhis attorney, 

via certified mail, return receipt requested., a copy of the respective letters as set forth at 

Appendix A for Caraballo and Appendix B for Bonilla. Each letter shall infonn the recipient that 

. in order to receive the relief offered to herfnim, she/he must return the executed Individual Relief 

and Release ofClaims fonn, at.Appendix C, to the PRPD within thirty (30) days ofherlhis 

receipt ofthe letter unless good cause, 'as determined exclusively bythe United States, exists for 

. his/her failure to do so. 	A copy of the. Individual Relief and Release of Claims form and oftbis . 

Decree shall be enclosed with each letter; 

10; The PRPD shall pay the full amount of the monetary award specified for each i 
) . 

Iindividual, ~'care ofherlhis a~~mey, within thirty (30) days ofits receipt of the executed , 

Individual Relief and Release of Claims form from that indiv~dual. 

11. The PRPD shall notify the United States as soon as payment to Caraballo and 

Bonilla has been made. The PRPD shall promptly forward to the United States a copy ofthe 

- ..----..-----canc~led c~~~~-~r o~er a;~;~~~~-doc~entati~n indicair:~-~~~ p:Yme~t ~~ been ;ecei~ed-.- --"--'--'-1 
12. . The PRfD shall report to the United States that it expunged all documents that 

contain negative references about Caraballo and Bonilla's work performance froni their 

respective personnel files, and any other files maintained by the PRPD, as provided for in 
. 	 . \ 

paragraphs 8(A)(2) and 8(B)(2) ofthis Decree, within sixty (60) days after-its receipt of 

Caraballo's and Bonilla' s~espective execu~ed Individual Relief and Release of Claims form.. 

I. 
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Caraballo and Bonilla's personnel files, and any other :files 'mamtained by the PRPD, shall be 

available for mspection by the United States for a period ofone (1) year after entry of this 

Decree. 

III. GENERAL RELIEF 

13. The PRPD shall not engage in any act or practice that has the purpose or effect of 

unlaw:fu1ly discriminating against any employee of the PRPD m that employee's compensation, 

terms, conditions or privileges of employment because of such employee's sex. ' 

14. The PRPD shall'not retaliate against any person because ,that person has opposed 

allegedly discrimmatory policies or practices; fIled a complaint, either formal or informal, with 

the PRPD; :filed a charge ofdiscrimination with the EEOC; or participated in or cooperated with: 

the initiation, mvestigation, litigation or administra~on oftbis case or this Decree. 

IV. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

15. Within sixty.(60) days after the date ofentry of this Decree, the PRPD shall 

implement policies and procedures that shall, at a minimum, include the following: 

A. A clear statement ofthe PRPD's commitment to equal employment 

opportunity and non-discrimination on the basis of sex or retaliation; 

B. . An assurance that employees who make complaints of se:({ discrimination 

or provide information related to such complaints will be protected against retaliation; 

C. A clearly described complaint process that provides multiple and 

accessible avenues ~y which an employee may make a written or verbal complaint ofsex 

discrimination or retaliation; 

6 
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. ' .. 

D. An assurance that the PRPD will protect the confidentiality ofcomplaints 


ofsex discrimination or retaliation to the :fuJi~st extent possible; 


E. A process that provides a prompt, thorough, and impartial investigation of ' 

complaints of sex discrimination or retaliation; and 

F. An assurance that the PRPD will take immediate and appropriate 


corrective action when it determines that sex discrimination or retaliation has occurred. 


16. Within thirty (30) days after the date ofentry oftbis Decree, the'PRPD shall 


submit the policies and procedures described in paragraph 15 to the Unit~d States for review, 


'cOln~ent and approval. The Uriited States' approval will not be unreasonably wi1:hP.eld, 


17. . Within ten (10) days after the date on which the PRPD i.n;tpl~ents the policies 

and procedures described in paragraph 15, the ;pRPD shall distribute copies 
, 
of s,uch policies and ' , 

procedures to all its employees in the Fajardo Area of the PRPD1
, and post such polici~s and 

procedures in aJl buildings and facilities used for posting general infonnation to PRPD 

, 'employees in the FaJardo Area ofthe PRPD. 

18. ~e PRPD shall ensure that each new employee in the Fajardo Area of the PRPD 

, ' 

receives a copy of the policies and procedures implemented pursuant to paragraph 15 at the time 
'------------,---'-------------------------._---.--'--'---'--' 

of the new employee's hire. Each new employee in' the Fajardo Area ofthe PRPD shall sign an' 

acknowledgment that he or she has read and understood such policies and proce~ures, and the 


signed acknowled.gment shall be placed in each new employee's personnel file. 


I This includes employees who 'Work under the supervision of the Fajardo Area 

. Superintendent, and employees who work under the supervision of San JU\U1-based commands or' 


divisions but are assigned to the Fajardo Area . 


7 
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V. 	 TRAINING 

19. No later than ninety (90) days after the date of entry of this D~cree, all supervisors 

in the Fajardo 'Area2 of the PRPD, including the Area Superintendent, shall be provided with 

training by the PRPD on the law of equal employment opportunity, including discrimination . 

based on sex and retaliation, lasting at least three (3) hours. The training ~ha11 include an 

explan~tion ofthe PRPD's policies and. procedures, as described in paragraph 15, regarding 

initiation and 'investigation ofa complamt of discrimination or retaliation. The f'RPD snall 

select, with the concurrence of the United States, a qualified individual or group of individuals to 

conduct the training outliried in this paragraph. The Unit~d States' concurreilce wilt"not be 

unreasonably withheld. The United States will review and approve. any prop~sed tr~g 

pro~am. prior to its administration. 

20. ~l persons w~o attend the training described in paragraph 19 shall sign and date 

an acknowledgment ofattendance for that training. The PRPD shall provide the United States 

with copies of these acknowledgments within ten (10) days of their execution. The }>RPD win 

keep ~n file all original signed and dated acknowledgments fDr ~edurati0!l of this Decree. 

VI. 	 COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

.21. The United States may review compliance with this Decree at any time. The 

.' . 

PRPD shall, upon request, provide copies of any documents relevant to the PRPD's.compliance. 

with this Decr~ to the United States. The PRPD shall als.o provide to the United States' counsel 

2 This includes sup~rvisors who work under the sup ervision' of the Fajardo Area 
Superintendent, and supervisors who work under the supervision of San Juan-based 'commands 
or divisions but are assigned to the Fajardo AIea. . 

8 
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access to any and all ofits employees for the purpose of conducting interviews or depositions to 


evaluate file PRPD's compliance with this Decree. 


22. The PRPD shall, upon request, provide the United States with compliance reports 

documenting all steps taken by the PRPD to comply wifil the Decree. 

23. Within thirty (30) ~ays ofreceiving a form3J. or informal c~mplainf ofsex 

discrimination or retaliation from an employee, file PRPD shall: 

A. inform file United States of the complaint and of all actions taken to 

. investigate the complaint; and . 

B. provide the United States with copies of all documents relevant to the 

complaint. (~ i 
! 

24. Within fifteen (15) days after the PRPD.completes the investigation of a 

complaint described in paragraph 23·above, the PRPDshall inform the United States of the 
. . 

results ofthat investigation and; if the complaint has.been found to be meritorious, ofthe 

corrective measures the PRPD will take or has .taken with respect to the matter. 

25 .. The PRPD shall retain during the tenn ofthis Decree all documents, in paper or 

electronic form (inclu~g electronic mail), that come into its possession that are relevant to this 
I------------------------~------------·--------------------------------------

Decree including but not limited to: (a)' documents related to complaints of sex discrimination or 

retaliation (formal or informal) made by PRPD employees; and (b) documents related to the 

training required by this Decree. 

3 The term "informal complaint" means a complaint of sex discririrination or retaliation 
froin an employee with.respect to which the PRPD initiates· an administrative investigation 
without first assigning a case or matter number to it. 

9 
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Vll. 	 NOTIFICATION OF THE PARTIES 

26. -	 All documents required'to be delivered under this Decree to the United States 

shall be sent to the attention of: 

ifbyUS. mail: 

Chief 

Employment Litigation Section 

Upited States Department ofJustice 

Civii Rights Division 


, Employment Litigation Section 
- 950 Pennsylvania Avenue. NW 


PHB -Room 4040 

Washington, DC 20530 


or ifby express delivery service to: 

Chief 

EmploYment Litigation, Section 

United States Department of Justice 

Civil Rights Division 

Employment Litigation Section 

601 D Street. NW, Room 4040 

Washington; DC 20004 


27. 	 All documents required to be delivered Under this Decree'to the PRPD shall be 

sent to the attention of: 

Rosa-Segui-eordero,Birector-~--'--'---"-----"-'------'--­

Oficina de Asuntos Legales 

Polici,a de Puerto Rico 

P.O. Box 70166 

San Juan, PR 00936 


and 	 Minnella Rivera Mulero 

Attorney 

Oficina de Litigios Generales 

Departamento de Iusticia 

P.O. Box 9020192 

$an Juan, PR 00902-0192' 


10 
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or ifby express delivery service to: 

Rosa Seguf Cordero, Director" 

Oficina de Asuntos Legales 

Policia de Puerto Rico 

101 AvenidaF.D. Roosevelt 

Cuartel General, Piso 9 

San Juan, PR 00936 


and 	 Minnella Rivera Mulero 

Attorney 

Oficina de Litigios Generales 

Departamento de Justieia 

600 Calle Olimpo Esq. Axmayer 

Parada 11 

San Juan, PR 00902-0192 


" "" vm. 	 JURISDICTION OF THE COURT 

28. Th~ Court shall maintain j"Qrisdiction ofthe matters covered by this Decree for a 

period oftbree (3) years from the date of enp-y ofthis Decree: This Decree shall expire without 

further order oftllls Court three (3) years from the date of its entry. 
," " 

"29. Ifa dispute arises conceining compliance with this Decree, the parties shall 

engage in good faith efforts to resolve ):he issue before seeking action by the Court: Ifthe parties 

are ~ble"c;:xpeditiously to resolve the issue, any party may move the Court for resolution, 

-"------"provided-thatwritten-notice-is-fusryrovided-to-the-other-party-at-1east~fourteen-t-l:4}-days-in:"-----""---

advance ofany intended filing with the Court. 

11 
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30. Failure by the United States to enforce this Decree or any provision there9f shall 

not be construed as a waiver of its. right to do so. 

APPROVED and o;RDERED this -$..!.."day of tie. ,2009. 

" '0 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Qn behalf.ofPlaintiff United States ofAmerica 

. LORETTA KING' 

Acting Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights D'vision 


z<...l*-~ 

Employment Litigation Section 
Civil Ri~ts Division ' " I 

,M. GADZICHOWSKI 
,BarNo. 1014294) 

'ef 

~-'==~~~--:--:-'~~f-1:-:-:+'9f7:~~D't.A: :ra~u"'12UOO~ 
Attorneys 

United States Department of Justice , ': .


---'--'CIviflughts DiVision -'-------..---..,--'--------.--;--.---.--- ­

Employment Li~gation Section - PHB Room 4014 

950 Pem;lSylvania Avenue, NW 

Washington, DC ~0530 


Telephone: 202~616:'9750 


Facsimile: 202-514-1005 


On bef!alfofDefendant Puerto Rico Police Department 

ANTONIO M. SAGARDIA DE JESUS 

Designated Secretary of Justice 


GRlSEL M. SANTIAGO CALDERON 

Acting Deputy Secretary In Charge ofLitigation 




- - -----.------~---.-------.-----------. --------_._--- .... -..--------- --_._. - _._--­ -_ .. ._---- ---------~-----.------ ._----_._-----_._--­
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Dated..'__--IW.~'J1L1~~~___ 

ROSASEGufCORDERO 

Director, O~ceofLegalAffairs 

flolice Department of the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico 

P.O. Box 70166 

~J~~~PR.~~ ~NJ12OO!Dated: 
U ~RO ----~~~~~---

.S.D.C. 0, 225504 . 

Attorney 

General Litigation Office 

Department ofJustice 

~.O. Box 9020192 

Sari Juan, PR 00902-0192 

Telephone: 787-721-2900 Ext. 2644/2669 

Facsimile: 787-723-9188 


~

----.---.----------------.--------------.:..------------------------ ­

--~------~-~.----- ._-_.---------------_.__.-.:._-­
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